
 

PENSIONS BOARD
________________________________________________

Thursday, 1 October 2015 at 9.30 a.m.
Room C1, 1st Floor, Town Hall, Mulberry Place, 5 Clove Crescent, 

London E14 2BG

This meeting is open to the public to attend. 

Members:
Chair: Vacancy
Vice-Chair:  Vacancy

David Stephen Thompson, (Representing Retired/Deferred Pension Fund Members)
Vacancy, (Reperesenting Active Pension Fund Members)
Vacancy, (Representing Active Admitted/Statutoury Bodies Pension Fund Members)

Councillor Dave Chesterton, (Representing Pension Fund Employers)
Andrew Crompton, (Representing Admitted Bodies Employers)
Minesh Jani, (Representing Pension Fund Employers)

Deputies 
 

Contact for further enquiries:
Antonella Burgio, Democratic Services.

Tel: 0207 364 4881
E-mail: 
Web: http://www.towerhamlets.gov.uk/committees

Scan this code 
to your mobile 
phone to view 
Committee 
website. 



1. APPOINTMENT OF CHAIR FOR THE DURATION OF THE MEETING  

To appoint a Chair for the duration of the meeting.

2. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  

To receive any apologies for absence.

3. DECLARATIONS OF DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY INTEREST  

To note any declarations of interest made by Members, including those restricting 
Members from voting on the questions detailed in Section 106 of the Local Government 
Finance Act, 1992.  See attached note from the Monitoring Officer. (Pages1-4)

4. MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING  

To confirm as a correct record of proceedings the informal notes of the inquorate meeting 
held on 28 July 2015. (Pages 5-8)

5. PETITIONS  

6. REPORTS FOR CONSIDERATION  

6 .1 Pensions Committee Meeting Papers 17 September 2015  (Pages 9 - 54)

To Consider the meeting papers of the Pensions Committee held on 17 September 2015.

6 .2 Training and Development For Members  (Pages 55 - 62)

6 .3 Pensions Board Work Plan for 2015/16  (Pages 63 - 72)

7. ANY OTHER ITEM THE CHAIR CONSIDERS TO BE URGENT  

7.1 W.M. League Table – The Fund and Managers’ Positions

8. DATE OF NEXT MEETING  

The next meeting will be held at Wednesday, 9 December 2015 at 10am in Room C1, 
1st Floor, Town Hall, Mulberry Place, 5 Clove Crescent, London E14 2BG



DECLARATIONS OF INTERESTS - NOTE FROM THE MONITORING OFFICER

This note is for guidance only.  For further details please consult the Members’ Code of Conduct 
at Part 5.1 of the Council’s Constitution.   

Please note that the question of whether a Member has an interest in any matter, and whether or 
not that interest is a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest, is for that Member to decide.  Advice is 
available from officers as listed below but they cannot make the decision for the Member.  If in 
doubt as to the nature of an interest it is advisable to seek advice prior to attending a meeting.  

Interests and Disclosable Pecuniary Interests (DPIs)

You have an interest in any business of the authority where that business relates to or is likely to 
affect any of the persons, bodies or matters listed in section 4.1 (a) of the Code of Conduct; and 
might reasonably be regarded as affecting the well-being or financial position of yourself, a 
member of your family or a person with whom you have a close association, to a greater extent 
than the majority of other council tax payers, ratepayers or inhabitants of the ward affected.

You must notify the Monitoring Officer in writing of any such interest, for inclusion in the Register 
of Members’ Interests which is available for public inspection and on the Council’s Website.

Once you have recorded an interest in the Register, you are not then required to declare that 
interest at each meeting where the business is discussed, unless the interest is a Disclosable 
Pecuniary Interest (DPI).

A DPI is defined in Regulations as a pecuniary interest of any of the descriptions listed at 
Appendix A overleaf.  Please note that a Member’s DPIs include his/her own relevant interests 
and also those of his/her spouse or civil partner; or a person with whom the Member is living as 
husband and wife; or a person with whom the Member is living as if they were civil partners; if the 
Member is aware that that other person has the interest.   

Effect of a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest on participation at meetings

Where you have a DPI in any business of the Council you must, unless you have obtained a 
dispensation from the authority's Monitoring Officer following consideration by the Dispensations 
Sub-Committee of the Standards Advisory Committee:-

- not seek to improperly influence a decision about that business; and
- not exercise executive functions in relation to that business.

If you are present at a meeting where that business is discussed, you must:-
- Disclose to the meeting  the existence and nature of the interest at the start of the meeting 

or when the interest becomes apparent, if later; and 
- Leave the room (including any public viewing area) for the duration of consideration and 

decision on the item and not seek to influence the debate or decision 



When declaring a DPI, Members should specify the nature of the interest and the agenda item to 
which the interest relates.  This procedure is designed to assist the public’s understanding of the 
meeting and to enable a full record to be made in the minutes of the meeting.  

Where you have a DPI in any business of the authority which is not included in the Member’s 
register of interests and you attend a meeting of the authority at which the business is 
considered, in addition to disclosing the interest to that meeting, you must also within 28 days 
notify the Monitoring Officer of the interest for inclusion in the Register. 

Further advice

For further advice please contact:-
John Williams, Service Head, Democratic Services, 020 7364 4204



APPENDIX A:  Definition of a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest

(Relevant Authorities (Disclosable Pecuniary Interests) Regulations 2012, Reg 2 and Schedule)

Subject Prescribed description
Employment, office, trade, 
profession or vacation

Any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on 
for profit or gain.

Sponsorship Any payment or provision of any other financial benefit (other 
than from the relevant authority) made or provided within the 
relevant period in respect of any expenses incurred by the 
Member in carrying out duties as a member, or towards the 
election expenses of the Member.
This includes any payment or financial benefit from a trade union 
within the meaning of the Trade Union and Labour Relations 
(Consolidation) Act 1992.

Contracts Any contract which is made between the relevant person (or a 
body in which the relevant person has a beneficial interest) and 
the relevant authority—
(a) under which goods or services are to be provided or works 
are to be executed; and
(b) which has not been fully discharged.

Land Any beneficial interest in land which is within the area of the 
relevant authority.

Licences Any licence (alone or jointly with others) to occupy land in the 
area of the relevant authority for a month or longer.

Corporate tenancies Any tenancy where (to the Member’s knowledge)—
(a) the landlord is the relevant authority; and
(b) the tenant is a body in which the relevant person has a 
beneficial interest.

Securities Any beneficial interest in securities of a body where—
(a) that body (to the Member’s knowledge) has a place of 
business or land in the area of the relevant authority; and
(b) either—

(i) the total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 or 
one hundredth of the total issued share capital of that body; or

(ii) if the share capital of that body is of more than one class, the 
total nominal value of the shares of any one class in which the 
relevant person has a beneficial interest exceeds one hundredth 
of the total issued share capital of that class.





PENSIONS BOARD, 28/07/2015 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED)

1

LONDON BOROUGH OF TOWER HAMLETS

MINUTES OF THE PENSIONS BOARD

HELD AT 10.00 A.M. ON TUESDAY, 28 JULY 2015

COUNCIL CHAMBER, TOWN HALL, MULBERRY PLACE, 5 CLOVE CRESCENT, 
LONDON E14 2BG

Members Present:

George Bruce (Chair) (Interim Chair for the meeting)
Councillor Dave Chesterton (Member)
Andrew Crompton (Member)
Minesh Jani (Member) (Head of Audit and Risk Management , 

Resources)
Other Councillors Present:

Officers Present:

Anant Dodia – (Pensions Manager)
Kevin Miles – (Chief Accountant,  Resources)
Bola Tobun – (Investments and Treasury Manager, Resources)
Ngozi Adedeji – (Team Leader Housing Services, Legal Services, 

Law Probity & Governance)

 Antonella Burgio – (Democratic Services)

INTRODUCTIONS

George Bruce, introduced himself and informed all present that he had been 
invited to act as interim Chair for the inaugural meeting pending the 
appointment of an independent Chair.  He welcomed all to the meeting and 
asked each person  attending to introduce themselves and state their role at 
the meeting.

QUORUM

It was noted that no employee representative was present at the meeting and 
therefore the meeting was inquorate.  On the recommendation of the Interim 
Administrative Chair, it was agreed that the meeting would proceed on an 
informal basis and the proceedings ratified at the next quorate meeting.

1. APPOINTMENT OF CHAIR FOR THE DURATION OF THE MEETING 



PENSIONS BOARD, 28/07/2015 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED)

2

It was noted that George Bruce had been invited to act as administrative 
Chair for the duration of the meeting pending the appointment of an 
independent Chair as prescribed in New LGPS regulations.

2. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Apologies for absence were received from employee representative Stephen 
Thompson and his deputy Mike Markson

3. DECLARATIONS OF DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY INTEREST 

No declarations of disclosable pecuniary interests were declared.

3. PENSIONS BOARD REPORTS FOR CONSIDERATION 

3.1 PENSIONS BOARD, MEMBERSHIP, QUORUM AND DATES OF 
MEETINGS 

The Clerk presented the report which asked members to note their powers 
and responsibilities under legislation and to determine their preferred meeting 
time.

Members discussed the preferred meeting time and determined that future 
meeting would take place at 10am.  Members then noted that the scheduled 
date of 17th September was not convenient and agreed that an alternative 
meeting date should be canvassed.

RECOMMENDED 

1. That the report be noted.

2. That future meetings be held at 10.00am

3. That the meeting scheduled for 17 September 2015 be postponed and 
an alternative date be canvassed amongst the Board members.

3.2 PENSIONS BOARD UPDATE JULY 2015 

The Administrative Chair introduced the reported and highlighted the following 
matters:

 The role of the Board in accordance with regulations
 That a basic understanding of pensions functions was required of 

Board Members
 Core and non-core functions as set out on page 16 of the report

In discussion, Members raised the following issues:
 There was a need for a clear mechanism by which Fund members 

could raise their concerns



PENSIONS BOARD, 28/07/2015 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED)

3

 There was need for a clear mechanism where by the work of the Board 
could be communicated to Fund members

The Board recommended that its Terms of Reference should be displayed in 
each meeting agenda.

RECOMMENDED 

1. That the report and discussion be noted

2. That the Pension Board Terms of Reference be displayed in each 
published agenda

3.3 LGPS GOVERNANCE TRAINING 

The Administrative Chair asked members to consider how they wished to 
undertake the required training.  Following discussion the Board determined 
that an appropriate training plan be devised to include the following elements:

 Governance Framework
 Actuarial Methods
 Accounting Audit
 Procurement 
 Investment Products

RECOMMENDED 

1. That the requirement for training be noted and 

2. That a training plan be devised and brought to a future meeting

3. That an in-house training session be arranged and notified to members 
of the Board

3.4 PENSION FUND BUSINESS PLAN AND BUDGET FOR 2015/16 

The Administrative Chair introduced the item which asked members to 
consider its business/work plan and what matters it wished to incorporate into 
the plan.  Members agreed that issues of Fund sustainability should be added 
to the plan.

RECOMMENDED 

That a draft plan be drawn up and presented at the next meeting.

3.5 INVESTMENT IN LONDON LGPS COLLECTIVE INVESTMENT  VEHICLE 
(CIV) 



PENSIONS BOARD, 28/07/2015 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED)

4

The Investments and Treasury Manager introduced the report which provided 
an update on the establishment of the London Collective Investment Vehicle 
(CIV).  The Board heard that:

 the body had recently been incorporated and registered with FCA.
 The share capital of LBTH LGPS would be £75,000
 During the recent budget statement, the Government had indicated that 

it favoured national pooling.

RECOMMENDED 

That the update be noted.

3.6 PENSION FUND INVESTMENT PERFORMANCE REVIEW FOR QUARTER 
END 31 MARCH 2015 

The Investments and Treasury Manager introduced the report which informed 
the Board of the performance of the Fund’s investment managers in the 
quarter ending 31 March 2015.  The Administrative Chair highlighted the 
opportunities afforded to the Board to monitor the performance of the Fund 
and ensure that it was kept abreast of financial markets 

RECOMMENDED 

That the quarterly investment performance review for the quarter ending 31 
March 2015 be noted.

3.7 2014/15 LOCAL GOVERNMENT PENSION FUND ANNUAL REPORT 

The Chief Accountant introduced the report which provided the draft annual 
accounts for the Board to consider prior to referral to the Council’s external 
auditors.  It was suggested that the external auditors be invited to the Board’s 
forthcoming meeting to discuss their findings, the processes employed in 
operating the Fund and how this complied with legislation.

RECOMMENDED 

That the draft accounts be noted.

4.0 ANY OTHER  BUSINESS CONSIDERED TO BE URGENT 

The Board was asked to respond to a canvass to be undertaken to determine 
a suitable date for the forthcoming meeting.

The meeting ended at 12.10 p.m. 

Interim Chair, George Bruce
Pensions Board



PENSIONS COMMITTEE AGENDA
Thursday, 17 September 2015 at 7.00 p.m.

PAGE
NUMBER(S)

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

1. DECLARATIONS OF DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY 
INTEREST 

1 - 4

To note any declarations of interest made by Members, including those 
restricting Members from voting on the questions detailed in Section 106 
of the Local Government Finance Act, 1992.  See attached note from the 
Monitoring Officer.

2. MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING(S) 5 - 20

To confirm as a correct record the minutes of the meeting of the 
Committee held on 24 February 2015 and 23 July 2015.

3. PETITIONS 

To receive any petitions relating to matters for which the Committee is 
responsible.

4. REPORTS FOR CONSIDERATION  

4 .1 Quarterly Report - Key Pension Administration Performance 
Indicators: April 2015 to June 2015  

21 - 24

All Wards
4 .2 Pension Fund Investment Performance Review for Quarter End 30 

June 2015  
25 - 38

All Wards
4 .3 Training and Development For Members  39 - 44

All Wards



5. ANY OTHER  BUSINESS CONSIDERED TO BE URGENT 

The Chair will be asked to consider the following items which have been 
notified after the agenda publication.

5 .1 Liability Driven Investment  - Presentation by James Sparsholt of 
LGIM  

5 .2 Training Policy - Presentation by Bola Tobun  

5 .3 Economic & Market Outlook by Raymond Haines  

Next Meeting of the Committee:
Thursday, 26 November 2015 at 7.00 p.m. to be held in Room MP702, 7th Floor, Town 
Hall, Mulberry Place, 5 Clove Crescent, London E14 2BG



























































































Page 1 of 7

Non-Executive Report of the:

Pensions Board

1st October 2015

Report of: Zena Cooke, Corporate Director of Resources
Classification:
Unrestricted

Training and Development For Members

Originating Officer(s) Bola Tobun, Investment & Treasury Manager
Wards affected All wards

Summary

This report sets out the need for a training and development programme for members 
of the Pensions Board.
The report explains the requirement for good governance of the Pension Fund and 
the framework of legislation, regulation and guidance which the Fund must comply 
with and that therefore there is a need for a formal training programme for Members 
of the Pensions Board.
The report also refers to the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy 
(CIPFA) publication “Pensions Finance, knowledge and skills framework, Technical 
Guidance for Elected Representatives and Non-executives in the Public Sector” 
(2010). (referred to elsewhere in this report as the “CIPFA knowledge and skills 
framework (2010)” This provides a framework for the training and development of 
Elected Members and other representatives on public sector pension scheme 
decision making bodies such as the Tower Hamlets Pensions Board.
 

Recommendations:

Members are recommended to agree:
(a) That the CIPFA “Pensions Finance, knowledge and skills framework, 
Technical Guidance for Elected Representatives and Non-executives in the 
Public Sector” (2010) is adopted as the basis for its training and development 
programme
(b) That a proposed schedule of training and development is prepared and 
presented at the next meeting of the Pensions Board.



Page 2 of 7

1. REASONS FOR THE DECISIONS

1.1 Governance is defined as the action, manner or system of governing. Good 
governance is vital and is promoted in the context of a pension scheme/fund by 
having Members and Observers on the decision making body who have the 
ability, knowledge and confidence to challenge and to make effective and 
rational decisions. The “CIPFA knowledge and skills framework (2010)” 
provides a framework for the training and development of members/observers 
with the objective of improving knowledge and skills in all relevant areas of the 
activity of a Pensions Board.

2. ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS

2.1    The Board could base its approach to training on the Training Policy approved 
and adopted by the current Pensions Committee. The adoption of the CIPFA 
knowledge and skills framework (2010) however indicates that the Board is 
following national guidance on the content of training for Board Members and 
Observers.

3. DETAILS OF REPORT

3.1 The Local Government Pension Scheme operates within a statutory and 
regulatory framework which includes the Superannuation Act 1972 and various 
statutory instruments including the Local Government Pension Scheme 
(Administration) Regulations 2008 (as amended) and the Local Government 
Pension Scheme (Management and Investment of Funds) Regulations 1998 
(as amended). The department for Communities and Local Government (CLG) 
which is the government department responsible for the Local Government 
Pension scheme and CIPFA have also issued codes and guidance in respect 
of the scheme. The CLG Local Government Pension Scheme Governance 
Compliance Statements Statutory Guidance (2008) sets out nine principles for 
the governance of schemes including training.

3.2 In 2000 the government commissioned a review of investment management in 
the United Kingdom led by Paul Myners (now Lord Myners). Arising from Paul 
Myners’ report the government issued a set of ten investment principles in 
2001. In 2002 the Local Government Pension Scheme (Management and 
Investment of Funds) Regulations 1988 were amended to require Local 
Government Pension Scheme Funds to report against these “Myners” 
principles.

3.3 In 2007 the government reviewed the “Myners” principles and in 2008 
published a new set of six investment principles. These have now been 
reviewed and amplified in the context of the Local Government Pension 
Scheme by a group involving the department for Communities and Local 
Government, CIPFA and other stakeholders.

3.4 Principle 1 of the six revised “Myners” Principles is “Effective decision making” 
which states that in the context of the Local Government Pension Scheme it 



Page 3 of 7

should be ensured that “decisions are taken by persons or organisations with 
the skills, knowledge, advice and resources necessary to make them effectively 
and monitor their implementation”; and that “ those persons or organizations 
have sufficient expertise to be able to evaluate and challenge the advice they 
receive, and manage conflicts of interest.

3.5 EXISTING TRAINING AND DEVELOPMENT FOR PENSION 
FUND COMMITTEE MEMBERS AND OBSERVERS

3.5.1 The current Pensions Committee agreed a Training Policy. Since the approval 
of the Training Policy, training has been provided in the form of presentations 
to the entire Committee and through opportunities for individuals to attend 
training courses such as those provided by the Local Government Employers’ 
organisation.

3.5.2 The training provided by the Tower Hamlets and other Local Government 
Pension Funds in recent years has improved the knowledge and skills of those 
who serve on decision making bodies responsible for the Local Government 
Pension Scheme.

3.5.3 However there has been a lack of an agreed definition of the knowledge and 
skills that those who serve on such decision making bodies require. This 
deficiency has however now been addressed by the local authority 
accountancy body CIPFA in one of its publications “Pensions Finance, 
knowledge and skills framework, Technical Guidance for Elected 
Representatives and Non-executives in the Public Sector” (2010). (Referred to 
elsewhere in this report as the “CIPFA knowledge and skills framework (2010)”

3.6 THE CIPFA KNOWLEDGE AND SKILLS FRAMEWORK
3.6.1 As the CIPFA knowledge and skills framework states, a great deal of work has 

been done in recent years to address the provision of training to those who 
serve on decision-making bodies. However in the absence of any detailed 
definition of what knowledge and skills are actually required to carry out a 
particular role, it is difficult to ascertain whether training is truly effective.

3.6.2 Therefore in an attempt to determine the right skill set for Pensions 
Committee/Board Members/Observers CIPFA has developed a technical 
knowledge and skills framework which is intended to have two primary uses:

 As a tool for organisations to determine whether they have the right skill 
mix to meet their scheme financial management needs

 As an assessment tool for individuals to measure their progress and 
plan their development

3.6.3 There are six areas of knowledge and skills CIPFA has identified as the core 
technical requirements relating to those involved in decision making. They are:

 Pension’s legislative and governance context

 Pension’s accounting and auditing standards



Page 4 of 7

 Financial Services procurement and relationship management

 Investment performance and risk management

 Financial markets and products knowledge

 Actuarial methods, standards and practices

3.6.4 The main issues covered in each of the six areas listed above are set out in 
Appendix 1.

3.6.5 At present the status of the CIPFA knowledge and skills framework is 
persuasive rather than mandatory. However CIPFA states that it understands 
the CLG is considering whether to amend the Local Government Pension 
Scheme (Administration) Regulations to require funds to include in their Annual 
Report a statement on whether they have adopted the CIPFA knowledge and 
skills framework as a basis for the training and development of those involved 
in pension scheme finances. In the interim the CIPFA Pensions Panel 
recommends that, as demonstration of good practice, users of the framework 
make a voluntary disclosure in their pension scheme Annual Reports that 
covers:

 How the framework has been applied

 What assessment of training needs has been undertaken

 What training has been delivered against the identified training 
needs

3.6.6 To help organisations achieve the standards set down in the framework, CIPFA 
is in the process of developing a repository of knowledge sources and 
knowledge and skills self-assessment tool to provide a web based tool for 
testing and extending the knowledge of an individual.

3.6.7 A very short training session to ensure that all Members and Observers of the 
Pensions Board have an understanding of the roles, responsibilities and 
statutory documents of the fund has been held on 31st July 2015 at the first 
meeting of the Board.

4. COMMENTS OF THE CHIEF FINANCE OFFICER
4.1 The comments of the Corporate Director, Resources are incorporated in the 

report

5. LEGAL COMMENTS 
5.1 Whilst there are no immediate legal consequences arising from this report it is 

important that members are trained appropriately so that decisions are made 
from a sound knowledge base thereby minimising the risk of any legal 
challenge.

6. ONE TOWER HAMLETS CONSIDERATIONS



Page 5 of 7

6.1 The employer’s contribution is a significant element of the Council’s budget and 
consequently any improvement in investment performance will reduce the 
contribution and increase the funds available for corporate priorities.

6.2 A viable pension scheme also represents an asset for the recruitment and 
retention of staff to deliver services to the residents.

7. BEST VALUE (BV) IMPLICATIONS
7.1 This report helps in addressing the required knowledge and skills needed for 

Members to understand the duties and responsibilities of a trustee and how best to 
fulfil these effectively, efficiently and in accordance with regulatory requirements.

8. SUSTAINABLE ACTION FOR A GREENER ENVIRONMENT
8.1 There is no Sustainable Action for A Greener Environment implication arising 

from this report.

9. RISK MANAGEMENT IMPLICATIONS
9.1 Any form of decision making process inevitably involves a degree of risk.
9.2 Effective training and development will help Members to gain sufficient 

knowledge and skills necessary to make appropriate decisions in minimising 
risk associated with their roles and responsibilities.

10. CRIME AND DISORDER REDUCTION IMPLICATIONS
10.1 There are no crime and disorder reduction implications arising from this report.

___________________________________

Linked Reports, Appendices and Background Documents

Linked Report
 [None]

Appendices
PENSIONS KNOWLEDGE AND SKILLS FRAMEWORK FOR PENSIONS BOARD 
MEMBERS

Local Government Act, 1972 Section 100D (As amended)
List of “Background Papers” used in the preparation of this report
Pensions Finance, knowledge and skills framework, Technical Guidance for Elected 
Representatives and Non-executives in the Public Sector, CIPFA (2010)

Investment decision making and disclosure in the Local Government Pension 
Scheme, A Guide to the Application of the Myners Principles, CIPFA (2009)

Officer contact details for documents:
 Bola Tobun Investment &Treasury Manager x4733



Page 6 of 7



Page 7 of 7

APPENDIX 1

PENSIONS KNOWLEDGE AND SKILLS FRAMEWORK FOR PENSIONS BOARD 
MEMBERS

Core technical areas and areas of knowledge

Legislative and governance framework
General pensions framework
Scheme-specific legislation for LGPS
Pensions regulators and advisors
Constitutional framework for pension fund Boards within administering authorities
Pension scheme governance

Accounting and auditing standards
Accounts and Audit regulations
Role of internal and external audit

Procurement of financial services and relationship management
Procurement requirements of UK and EU legislation
Supplier risk management 

Investment performance and risk management
Monitoring of investment performance
Performance of advisors
Performance of the Pensions Board
Performance of support services

Financial markets and investment products
Investment strategy
Financial markets
Regulatory requirements regarding investment products

Actuarial methods, standards and practices
Valuations, funding strategy and inter-valuation monitoring
Ill-health and early retirement
Admitted bodies
Outsourcing and bulk transfers





Non-Executive Report of the:
PENSIONS BOARD

01 October 2015

Report of: Zena Cooke, Corporate Director of Resources Classification:
Unrestricted

Pensions Board Work Plan for 2015/16

Originating Officer(s) Bola Tobun, Investment and Treasury Manager
Wards affected All

Summary

This report outlines the Indicative Work Plan for the Pensions Board for 2015/16.

Recommendations:
Members are asked to:

 Agree the work plan attached as Appendix 1 to this report.



1. REASONS FOR THE DECISIONS
1.1 Under the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) Regulations, the 

Council is required to maintain a Pension Fund for its employees and other 
‘scheduled bodies’ as defined in the Regulations. The Regulations also 
empower the Fund to admit employees of other ‘defined’ (e.g. other public 
bodies, housing corporations) bodies into the Fund.

1.2 The Pensions Board has been established in accordance with the Public 
Service Pensions Act 2013 and in accordance with the Local Government 
Pensions Scheme (Amendment) (Governance) Regulations 2014. 
Consideration of a schedule of work for the Pensions Board helps to plan and 
manage the time of the Board effectively, as well as to demonstrate that the 
Board is meeting its Terms of Reference in assisting the Administering 
Authority to comply with regulations

1.3    The proposed work plan for the Board has been put together to assist it to fulfil 
its statutory obligations to secure compliance by the administering authority of 
the 2014 Regulations, any other legislation relating to the governance and 
administration of the Fund, any requirements imposed by the Pensions 
Regulator in relation to the Fund and to ensure the effective and efficient 
governance and administration of the Fund.   

2. ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS
2.1 The development and implementation of a work plan should ensure that a 

structured approach is in place for the Board to meet its obligations to ensure 
effective and efficient governance and administration of the Fund.  This should 
in turn ensure that the Council meets its statutory obligations as administering 
authority to the Fund. However, the Board is under no obligation to adopt a 
work plan in carrying out its duties.

3. DETAILS OF REPORT
3.1 The Council has specific delegated functions that it has to fulfil as the 

administering authority to the Pension Fund. This requires that a number of 
monitoring and management activities are undertaken to ensure that it fully 
discharges its oversight and governance responsibilities to the Fund.

3.2 Under the regulations, responsibility for decision-making with regards to the 
management of the Fund remains with the Pensions Committee; the Pension 
Board is not a decision-making body. The Board will, however, have a broad 
remit to review the decision-making process of the Pensions Committee in 
matters of scheme administration and governance. As such, members of the 
Pension Board will be provided with the final reports, minutes and agendas 
relating to all Pensions Committees and may attend Committee meetings as 
observers.

3.3 The Pensions Committee is scheduled to meet a minimum of 4 times per 
municipal year with scope for additional meetings as required. The meetings’ 
minutes will be provided to the Pensions Board.

3.4 The Board may make reports or recommendations to Pensions Committee; 
these must be provided at least 21 days in advance of the next Committee 
meeting. 



3.5 Additionally, the Chair of the Pensions Board will prepare an annual report, 
which will be distributed to the Pensions Committee, the Lead Member for 
Resources, the Corporate Director, Resources, and the Monitoring Officer. In 
the event that the Board considers that a matter brought to the attention of the 
relevant Directors and the Pensions Committee has not been acted upon within 
a reasonable period of time, it may also provide a report to full Council.

3.6 An indicative work plan for the year 2015-16 has been drawn up, but at this 
stage this is subject to amendment and will depend on a number of 
circumstances including the work undertaken by the Pensions Committee, any 
key changes to wider regulations or pension related issues and any further 
guidance or direction from the Pensions Regulator. The Pensions Board may 
also consider other issues with greater or more importance which might require 
additional work or review.

3.6 WORK PLAN
3.6.1 In designing the work plan, the priorities of the Council as the administering 

authority of the Fund have been considered and incorporated into the Plan.  The 
Work Plan has been developed using the outline action plan below:

ACTIVITY PURPOSE
Administration & Governance 
Member training on specific and 
general issues

To provide training on specific issues based on 
identified need or emerging/ current issues. To 
provide ongoing training to members to enable 
them to review the decisions made by the 
pensions committee.

Pensions Board to receive key 
performance indicators report on a 
quarterly basis.

To ensure the scheme is run in accordance 
with agreed service standards; and compliance 
with regulations and to deal with and rectify any 
errors and complaints in a timely way.

Review the current pension 
administration strategy

To ensure the scheme is run in accordance 
with the rules.

Review and check robustness of 
key policy documents; the 
Pensions Administration Policy, 
Governance & Communications 
Policy Statement,  Statement of 
Investment Principles and Funding 
Strategy Statement, as necessary 
(i.e. where significant changes are 
made)

To ensure policies are adequate and robust for 
the effective operation of the fund.

Minimum of two Pensions Board 
meetings to be held during the 
financial year 2015/16.

To ensure that key tasks/issues that affect the 
effective operation of the Fund are reviewed.

Investment & Accounting
To review comment made and 
Implementation of External 
Auditors recommendations on 
Pension Fund Annual Accounts.

To ensure that the Council meets the 
regulatory timetable and fulfils its stewardship 
role to the Fund.



Audited Pension Fund Annual 
Report to be published on or 
before the statutory deadline of 1 
December 2015

Ensure that the Council fulfils its statutory 
obligation and to keep members abreast of the 
Pension Fund activities in a transparent and 
accessible way.

To review the work done in 
preparation for 2016, Triennial 
Valuation of Pension Fund Assets 
and Liabilities

The Fund is bound by legislation to undertake 
an actuarial valuation of its assets and liabilities 
to ensure that appropriate future contribution 
rates are set and that any Fund deficit is 
recovered over an appropriate period of time in 
line with the Fund’s Strategy Statement. This 
report will present to Members the timely and 
accurate presentation of data for this exercise.

4. COMMENTS OF THE CHIEF FINANCE OFFICER

4.1     The Pensions Board’s role is to assist the Administering Authority in ensuring
compliance with the regulations. The work plan as set out in the appendix to 
this report ensures that the Pensions Board is able to cover key areas of work 
in line with the Regulatory requirements. There are no immediate financial 
implications arising from this report, although it is recognised that the 
Pensions Board are able to ask for additional information or resourcing in 
order to help them to fulfil their role as the Pension Board.

5. LEGAL COMMENTS  

5.1  Members of the Pensions Board are required by Regulations to   ensure the 
effective and efficient governance and administration of the Council’s pension 
scheme, so that the Council meets its various statutory obligations and duties.  
This Work Plan provides for certain statutory requirements to be met and for 
members to be well trained and kept up to date and thus fit for purpose.

5.2 When carrying out its functions, the Pensions Board   must have due regard to 
the need to eliminate unlawful conduct under the Equality Act 2010, the need to 
advance equality of opportunity and the need to foster good relations between 
persons who share a protected characteristic and those who don’t (the public 
sector duty).  

6. ONE TOWER HAMLETS CONSIDERATIONS
6.1 The London Borough of Tower Hamlets Pension Fund represents an asset to 

the Council in terms of its ability for attracting and retaining staff who deliver 
services to residents. The adoption of a Work Plan should lead to more 
effective management of the Fund.

6.2 A significant element of the Council’s budget is the employer’s contribution to 
the Fund. Therefore, any improvement in the efficiency of the Fund that leads 
to improvement in investment performance or cost savings will likely reduce 
contributions from the Council and release funds for corporate priorities.

7. BEST VALUE (BV) IMPLICATIONS



7.1 A work plan should result in a more efficient process of managing the Pension 
Fund.

8. SUSTAINABLE ACTION FOR A GREENER ENVIRONMENT

8.1     There is no Sustainable Action for A Greener Environment implication arising 
from this report.

9. RISK MANAGEMENT IMPLICATIONS
9.1   The adoption of a work plan will minimise risks relating to the management of the 

Fund and should assist in managing down the risk of non-compliance with the 
Council’s obligations under the Regulation as the administering authority of the 
London Borough of Tower Hamlets Pension Fund.

10. CRIME AND DISORDER REDUCTION IMPLICATIONS
10.1 There are no any crime and disorder reduction implications arising from this report.

____________________________________

Linked Reports, Appendices and Background Documents

Linked Report
 NONE 

Appendices
 NONE

Local Government Act, 1972 Section 100D (As amended)
List of “Background Papers” used in the preparation of this report
 NONE

Officer contact details for documents:
 Bola Tobun - Investment &Treasury Manager x4733
 Mulberry House, 5 Clove Crescent E14 2BG





PENSIONS BOARD
Work Plan

2014/15



Page 2 of 3

Date of Meeting Title of Report Contact Officer

31st July 2015 Received, Note/Review Pensions Committee 
Meetings agenda (reports & minutes)

Investment & Treasury Manager

31st July 2015 Quarterly Administrative Key Performance 
Indicators Report

Pensions Manager

31st July 2015 Other Ad-hoc items for consideration Various

31st July 2015 Member Training Investment & Treasury Manager

1st October 2015 Received, Note/Review Pensions Committee 
Meetings agenda (reports & minutes)

Investment & Treasury Manager

1st October 2015 Quarterly Administrative Key Performance 
Indicators Report

Pensions Manager

1st October 2015 Member Training Investment & Treasury Manager

1st October 2015 Pension Fund Work Plan 2015/16 Investment & Treasury Manager

1st October 2015 Other Ad-hoc items for consideration Various

10th December 2015 Received, Note/Review Pensions Committee 
Meetings agenda (reports & minutes)

Investment & Treasury Manager

10th December 2015 Quarterly Administrative Key Performance 
Indicators Report

Pensions Manager

10th December 2015 Review of Communications Policy Statement Pensions Manager

10th December 2015 Review of Pensions Administration Policy Pensions Manager

10th December 2015 Review of The Pensions Regulator Code of 
Practice 

Investment & Treasury Manager/Pensions 
Manager



Page 3 of 3

10th December 2015 Review of Annual Report and Accounts Investment & Treasury Manager

10th December 2015 Other Ad-hoc items for consideration Various

24th March 2015 Received, Note/Review Pensions Committee 
Meetings agenda (reports & minutes)

Investment & Treasury Manager

24th March 2015 Quarterly Administrative Key Performance 
Indicators Report

Pensions Manager

24th March 2015 Review of Governance Compliance 
Statement 

Investment & Treasury Manager

24th March 2015 Pension Fund Work Plan 2016/17 Investment & Treasury Manager

24th March 2015 Review of AVC Provision Pensions Manager

24th March 2015 Other Ad-hoc items for consideration Various




	Agenda
	3 DECLARATIONS OF DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY INTEREST
	4 MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING
	6.1 Pensions Committee Meeting Papers 17 September 2015
	PC Agen 17_09_15

	6.2 Training and Development For Members
	6.3 Pensions Board Work Plan for 2015/16
	PB work plan 2014-15


